
Please note that by law this meeting can be filmed, audio-
recorded, photographed or reported electronically by the use 
of social media by anyone attending.  This does not apply to 
any part of the meeting that is held in private session.

Please ask for:
Gurdip Paddan

* Reporting to Cabinet
3 July 2018

Dear Councillor

You are requested to attend a meeting of the WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL 
CABINET PLANNING AND PARKING PANEL to be held on Thursday 12 July 2018 at 
7.30pm in the Council Chamber, Council Offices, The Campus, Welwyn Garden City, 
Herts, AL8 6AE.

Yours faithfully

Corporate Director
Public Protection, Planning and Governance

A G E N D A
PART 1

1.  SUBSTITUTIONS 

To note any substitution of Committee Members in accordance with Council 
Procedure Rules 19 – 22.

2.  APOLOGIES 

3.  MINUTES 

To confirm as a correct record the Minutes of the meeting held on 7 June 2018 
(previously circulated). 

4.  NOTIFICATION OR URGENT BUSINESS TO BE CONSIDERED UNDER ITEM 8 

Public Document Pack



5.  DECLARATION OF INTERESTS BY MEMBERS 

To note declarations of Members’ disclosable pecuniary interests, non-disclosable 
pecuniary interests and non-pecuniary interests in respect of items on this Agenda.

6.  PUBLIC QUESTION TIME AND PETITIONS 

Up to fifteen minutes will be made available for questions from members of the 
public on issues relating to the work of the Committee and to receive any petitions.

7.  REVIEW OF WAITING RESTRICTIONS AND INTRODUCTION OF VERGE 
PROTECTION ORDER IN VARIOUS ROADS, HANDSIDE WARD, WELWYN 
GARDEN CITY (Pages 5 - 100)

Report of the Corporate Director (Resources, Environment and Cultural Services), 
which sets out the results of the informal consultation, the statutory consultation 
and the recommended course of action. A total of 258 properties and businesses 
have been consulted.

8.  SUCH OTHER BUSINESS AS, IN THE OPINION OF THE CHAIRMAN, IS OF 
SUFFICIENT URGENCY TO WARRANT IMMEDIATE CONSIDERATION 

9.  EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC 

The Panel is asked to resolve:

That under Section 100(A)(2) and (4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the press 
and public be now excluded from the meeting for item 10 (if any) on the grounds 
that it involves the likely disclosure of confidential or exempt information as defined 
in Section 100A(3) and Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the said Act (as amended). 

In resolving to exclude the public in respect of the exempt information, it is 
considered that the public interest in maintaining the exemption outweighs the 
public interest in disclosing the information. 

PART II

10.  ANY OTHER BUSINESS OF A CONFIDENTIAL OR EXEMPT NATURE AT THE 
DISCRETION OF THE CHAIRMAN 

Circulation: Councillors S.Boulton (Chairman)
M.Perkins (Vice-Chairman)
A.Chesterman
J.Cragg
C.Gillett
S.Glick

G.Hayes
S.Kasumu
A Rohale
P.Shah
P.Zukowskyj



Co-opted Members:-
Tenants’ Panel Representatives

D.Fuller and R.Read

Corporate Management Team
Press and Public (except Part II Items)

If you require any further information about this Agenda please contact Gurdip 
Paddan, Governance Services on 01707 357349 or email – 
democracy@welhat.gov.uk



This page is intentionally left blank



1

Part 1
Main author: Jack Carson
Executive Member: Cllr S Boulton
Handside Ward

WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL
CABINET PLANNING AND PARKING PANEL – 12 JULY 2018
REPORT OF THE CORPORATE DIRECTOR (RESOURCES, ENVIRONMENT AND 
CULTURAL SERVICES)

REVIEW OF WAITING RESTRICTIONS AND INTRODUCTION OF VERGE 
PROTECTION ORDER IN VARIOUS ROADS, HANDSIDE WARD, WGC

1 Executive Summary

1.1 Residents and businesses in parts of Parkway, WGC and surrounding roads were 
consulted about proposals based upon the findings of a general parking survey in 
2015.

1.2 As well as a Traffic Regulation Order (TRO) for waiting restrictions devised from 
the recent parking consultations, the Council are looking to introduce a Verge and 
Footway Protection Order (VPO). The VPO is in response to the many complaints 
it receives concerning damage to grass verges and footways throughout the 
borough. This legislation allows the Council to adopt a more effective and robust 
approach to this problem, by issuing Penalty Charge Notices to vehicles parking 
in such areas, which is not possible with the current grass verge bye-law.

1.3 A VPO covers the limits of the public highway, extending from the centre of the 
road to the highway boundary, which in many case is the boundary of the private 
property. Yellow line waiting restrictions also share the same boundary.

1.4 “Verge” means any land forming part of the road which is neither carriageway nor 
footway.

1.5 “Vehicle crossover” means a metalled surface constructed specifically as a means 
of access across a verge from the carriageway of a road, to a private driveway or 
private parking place. The crossovers are not designed to be parked upon. The 
responsibility for their maintenance is with Hertfordshire County Council (HCC). It 
is in HCCs application form that they not additional parking provision and only to 
access and egress on to private property. It should be noted that upon receipt of 
this advice, dwellings falling within this category with existing yellow line 
restrictions in Welwyn Garden City received confirmation of this fact by letter 2-3 
years ago.

1.6 Parkway, due to its length and varying characteristics, was divided into four 
separate sections; A, B, C and D. In addition to these areas, separate consultations 
also took place regarding proposed waiting restrictions in Longcroft Green and a 
request for junction protection in Fordwich Road. As a result of a number of 
requests for clarification and/or additional enquiries, the consultation period for 
Parkway C was extended to provide more time for residents to absorb all the 
relevant information.

1.7 This report sets out the results of the informal consultation, the statutory 
consultation and the recommended course of action. A total of 258 properties and 

Page 5

Agenda Item 7



2

businesses have been consulted.  38 objections have been received. See 
Appendix A.

2 Recommendation(s)

2.1 That the Panel consider the objections received in 4.1, 4.3, 4.5 and 4.7; in 
particular the issues raised in Section 12 around equalities and diversity. Having 
considered all the detailed issues in this report including any proposed mitigating 
actions; recommends to Cabinet to proceed with the creation of both the Orders 
as advertised (Appendix B), for the reasons set out in this report.

3 Explanation

3.1 Longcroft Green

3.1.1 Residents from Longcroft Green had contacted the Council independently to 
complain of parking congestion and damage to the grass verge caused by 
vehicle over-run.

3.1.2 The initial response from Parking Services was to propose double yellow lines 
around the junction and the remainder to be controlled by a single yellow line, 
Monday to Friday, 9am to 5pm waiting restriction. This was later amended to a 
Monday to Saturday 8am to 6pm restriction as a consequence of parking 
charges being introduced at the Gosling Stadium.

3.1.3 A comment was received from a resident requesting that the single yellow line 
terminate at the turning head, thus allowing the residents from the four properties 
to park outside their homes should the need arise. This was agreed to and the 
proposals amended.

3.1.4 Following the advertisement of the proposals as part of the statutory consultation, 
requests were received from residents of Stanborough Mews asking if the 
restriction could be amended to Monday to Friday only. This was to assist in 
visitor parking at the weekend. This request was also agreed to and the 
proposals amended.

3.1.5 No formal objections have been received in relation to the Longcroft Green 
proposals. 

3.1.6 Officers recommend to amend the proposals as outlined in Appendix C to which 
were advertised. As this makes the scheme less restrictive this does not need to 
be re-advertised.

3.2 Fordwich Road

3.2.1 After the implementation of a resident parking scheme in Longcroft Lane and the 
surrounding roads, as part of the monitoring period the Council received a 
request for junction protection in the form of double yellow lines within Fordwich 
Road. The complainant cited congestion and poor visibility around this junction.

3.2.2 Parking Services proposed to install double yellow lines around this particular 
junction. Following comments made by a resident, one arm of the junction was 
foreshortened to allow parking space for a vehicle outside No 33 Fordwich Road

Page 6



3

3.2.3 Following advertisement of the proposals, two formal objections have been 
received. See Appendix A

3.2.4 Officers recommend to introduce the TRO as advertised in Appendix B.

3.3 Parkway A 

3.3.1 This section of Parkway covers the area between the junctions of Stanborough   
Road and Rooks Hill, There is existing junction protection only at the junction with 
Stanborough Green. The main carriageway is currently unrestricted.

3.3.2 Comments received in response to the consultation highlighted complaints of long 
stay commuter parking, both on the main carriageway and also within the cul-de-
sac area. This was further compounded by short-stay parking from people using 
the Sports Centre (as Gosling have introduced parking charges for people using 
their car park) and vehicles on display being offered for sale. The dwellings 
bounding the cul-de-sac had no off-street parking therefore were directly affected 
by non-residential parking.

3.3.3 At peak periods, the roundabout at the foot of Parkway at the junction with 
Stanborough Road was liable to congestion. The parked commuter vehicles in that 
section of Parkway added to this congestion restricting traffic flows. A short term 
limited waiting restriction was thereby considered to deter long stay non-residential 
parking.

3.3.4 In order to retain parking for the benefit of residents, Parking Services proposed 
that the cul-de-sac area be restricted to residential permit parking only. Included 
in the eligible addresses are Nos 173 and 175 Parkway, addresses which have no 
off-street parking. No 169 successfully applied for a vehicle crossover and parking 
space which has now been constructed. A request was also received to include 
No 22 Stanborough Road in the list of eligible addresses as access to this property 
was via the cul-de-sac. To achieve the best possible capacity in this area, an 
application was submitted by Parking Services to re-profile the cul-de-sac, this has 
been approved and the construction of the new parking area has now been 
completed. See Appendix D.

3.3.5 The advertised proposals were the creation of a new permit parking zone A11, 
Monday to Saturday 9am to 5pm. The remainder of the carriageway would be 
subject to a Monday to Saturday, 9am to 11am, single yellow line waiting restriction 
which is consistent with other single yellow lines in this area.

3.3.6 Three formal objections have been received following advertisement of the 
proposals. See Appendix A

3.3.7 Officers recommend to introduce the TRO as advertised in Appendix B.

3.4 Parkway B

3.4.1 This section of Parkway covers the area between the junctions of Turmore Dale 
and Barleycroft Road, the majority of which is currently controlled by a single 
yellow line waiting restriction, Monday to Saturday, 8am to 6pm.

3.4.2 To reinforce junction protection on the junctions with Honeycroft, Fordwich Road 
and Fearnley Road, it is proposed to change the existing single yellow lines to 
double yellow lines, No waiting at any time.

Page 7



4

3.4.3 In wishing to implement the Verge Protection Order, Parking Services were aware 
that a number of residents accustomed to parking on extended vehicle crossovers, 
would no longer to be able to do so. This affected properties both in Honeycroft 
and Parkway. To cater for any shortfall, it is proposed to install permit parking bays 
at various locations along this stretch of Parkway. This included the area north of 
the junction with Fearnley Road subject to double yellow lines where residents 
reported difficulties with visitor parking. The bays would form part of a new Zone 
A10 and operate Monday to Saturday 8am to 6pm, reflecting the operation of the 
current single yellow line restrictions.

3.4.4 The remaining areas along Parkway will be controlled by a single yellow line, 
Monday to Saturday, 8am to 6pm waiting restriction.

3.4.5 Following advertisement of these proposals, seven formal objections have been 
received. See Appendix A

3.4.6 Officers recommend to introduce the TRO as advertised in Appendix B.

3.5 Parkway C

3.5.1 This section of Parkway covers the area between the junctions of Barleycroft 
Road and Church Road, including Parkway Close. Parkway Close (Zone A03) is 
currently controlled by a residents parking permit scheme Monday-Saturday, 
8am – 6pm. The section of Parkway between Barleycroft Road and Church Road 
(Zone A04) has shared use parking bays, which allows anyone to park there for 2 
hours or resident permit parking which operates for the same days and times as 
above.

3.5.2 Residents in the shared use section have in the last few years reported difficulty 
in being able to park as their parking bays are taken up with non-residents 
parking for the permitted 2 hours. One reason for this is the one way system in 
Parkway which is a main thoroughfare into Welwyn Garden City. People traveling 
in from this direction see a space and take it. Whereas on the opposite side of 
the road the shared use parking bays in this section are rarely fully utilised. 

3.5.3 Residents in Parkway Close have also reported insufficient parking provision. 
The entrance road is very narrow, with a parking section which currently 
accommodates up to 16 vehicles. In addition, residents have been parking on 
extended vehicle crossovers and additional informal parking areas have been 
created by adapting pedestrian pathways to accommodate vehicles. Parkway 
Close is an iconic area within Welwyn Garden City and is visited from people all 
around the world to see an example of Ebenezer Howard’s Garden City ethos.

3.5.4 The Council looked at how this could be addressed, especially as no additional 
parking provision could be created. Therefore, the council proposed to merge 
both areas together and create one resident parking permit scheme Monday – 
Saturday, 8am-6pm. At the same time look to introduce a VPO which would 
cover the pavement, verge and vehicle crossovers both formal and informal 
(initial letter May 2017).

3.5.5 During the initial consultation Parkway Close residents were of the opinion that 
Parkway residents would prefer to park in the Close which would actually reduce 
the parking available for residents within the Close. Whilst it is appreciated this 
may have been the case before the restrictions where introduced in 2010, as it is 

Page 8



5

now proposed, all residents would be included in the same scheme. Therefore 
any perceived need to park in the Close would not be as attractive as being able 
to park outside of their home. In the Council’s experience, residents want to park 
as close to their home as possible. 

3.5.6 In addition, a number of questions arose regarding what areas the VPO would 
cover. A letter which outlined the results of the consultation was sent in June 
2017, within this letter the extent of the VPO was explained in more detail. The 
Council are receiving more and requests to deal with people parking on the verge 
and pavements. At present, enforcement of parking on the pavement is the remit 
of the Police as this could be classed as obstruction, however this is regarded as 
a low priority for the Police due to other work pressures. Vehicles parking on the 
verge and green areas are reported through to the Council and the Street 
Warden team who will monitor and place notices on vehicles parking in such 
areas, requesting that they refrain from doing this. Without a VPO in place there 
is not the means to effectively and robustly manage vehicles parking in these 
areas. 

3.5.7 Following advertisement of these proposals, twenty-six formal objections have 
been received. See Appendix A

3.5.8 Officers recommend to introduce the TRO as advertised in Appendix B

3.6 Parkway D

3.6.1 This section of Parkway is located on the southbound carriageway of the dualled 
section, situated between the junctions of Church Road and Birdcroft Road. In 
this section there are currently shared use permit parking bays (Zone A04) either 
for the use of residents or short stay visitors, 2 hours, no return with 2 hours. 
Residents in this area were content with the present arrangement and wished no 
change to the current waiting restrictions.

3.6.2 Although no changes are been made to the waiting restrictions, the council 
proposed to introduce a VPO to cover the verge, pavement and vehicle 
crossovers in this area. No formal objections have been received in response to 
the formal advertisement.

3.6.3 Officers recommend to introduce the TRO as advertised in Appendix B

3.7 Traffic Regulation Order

3.7.1 On the 20th December 2017 the public notice proposing “The Borough of 
Welwyn Hatfield (Various Roads, Welwyn Garden City) (Restriction of 
Waiting and Permit Parking Zones) Order 2017, together with “The Borough 
of Welwyn Hatfield (Various Roads, Handside, Welwyn Garden City) 
(Prohibition of Stopping and Waiting on Verge or Footway) Order 2017 was 
advertised in the Welwyn Hatfield Times. Notices were also erected in the 
lengths of roads affected.

3.7.2 The closing date for formal objections was 31st January 2018. However, the 
Council must consider any objections which are received until the objections 
have been considered. See Appendix B.

Page 9



6

4 Objections

4.1 There are three objections pertaining to Parkway A. Two are concerned with the 
verge protection order and the other with the cul-de-sac permit zone. Below is a 
summary of the grounds for objection:

a) There is no need for a verge protection order on this specific stretch of 
Parkway because of existing bollards that prevent parking on the verge.

b) The verge protection order will prevent residents from parking on the 
vehicle crossover and substantially increase on-road parking.

c) The original letter omitted to inform residents of the survey results 
concerning the cul-de-sac. From talking to the neighbours my 
understanding is that there was no majority. Please provide a breakdown 
of responses to all questions.

d) We are delighted with the introduction of permit parking but object to the 
operating days/times. We would support the proposal if it was 24/7, seven 
days a week with no time restriction, so permanently in place.

4.2 The reasons for moving forward with these proposals as detailed in Appendix B 
are as follows:

4.2.1 Responses to 4.1

a) The existing oak bollards were installed precisely as a result of verge 
parking. A verge protection order would enable their removal and 
represent a major improvement in the conservation area streetscene.

b) There is existing off-road parking for all properties. For those that don’t 
have such provision, they have been included in the list of eligible 
properties for the cul-de-sac.

c) The viability of the scheme was dependent on planning consent for the 
re-profiling of the cul-de-sac. This has now been granted. The original 
letter was sent out to Nos 181-189. Two further properties have since 
been added. Of the 8 eligible properties, 5 were in favour with 2 against. 
No reply from one property. Note that one of these properties has now 
been granted permission for a vehicle crossover.

d) The Council currently does not have the resources to enforce 24/7, seven 
days a week.

4.3 There are two objections pertaining to Fordwich Road. Below is a summary of 
grounds for objection.

a) Our property is unique in that its garage and driveway is located to the 
side and rear. The walk from our driveway to the front door is pitch black 
because the street lighting is turned off. We are being targeted in an 
unfair and discriminatory manner.

Page 10



7

b) We object to the proposal as we feel that the double yellow lines do not 
extend far enough down Fordwich Road towards Parkway. Cars often 
park directly opposite to our crossover such that on occasion we have 
had to mount the kerb to gain access.

4.4 The reasons for moving forward with these proposals as detailed in Appendix B 
are as follows:

4.4.1 Responses to 4.3

a) This would be a short walk and would cause the minimum of 
inconvenience. However, space for a vehicle has also been allowed for 
to the front of the property.

b) There is sufficient capacity for vehicles to park elsewhere.

4.5 There are seven objections pertaining to Parkway B. Below is a summary of 
grounds for objection.

a) Based on the parking restrictions (Verge Protection Order) you are 
proposing for Honeycroft any cars parked on the driveway in front of my 
garage would be illegally parked. We would have to seek alternative 
parking in nearby roads.

b) We maintain the areas of grass, which are council owned. The adjoining 
driveways should also remain unaffected by your parking restrictions.

c) The proposed permit parking bays on the west side of Parkway opposite 
Parkway Gardens will cause unnecessary congestion, lead to accidents 
and restrict the view of pedestrians.

d) Most of the homes here have substantial drives for off-road parking. This 
is the main route in and out of town and parked cars cause congestion.

e) This will make turning right in and out of Parkway Gardens dangerous. 
Why not build off-road parking bays?

f) I only have space for one car. Where will all my visitors and tradespeople 
park, if not on my driveway?

4.6 The reasons for moving forward with the proposals as detailed in Appendix B 
are as follows:

4.6.1 Responses to 4.5

a) Permit parking bays have been provided in Parkway to cater for this 
eventuality.

b) The Council does not have the authority to permit parking on land 
owned by Hertfordshire County Council. Consultation with Hertfordshire 
County Council confirmed that they are not agreeable to parking on 
their land.

Page 11



8

c) The location of the permit parking bays were vetted by Police who 
raised no objections. There is a pedestrian crossing point nearby with a 
central refuge.

d) The Police do not wish for parking to be removed from Parkway as this 
would increase vehicle speeds and the likelihood of collisions.

e) The location was vetted for off-road parking bays but ruled out due to 
underground apparatus, existing drainage and mature trees.

f) Sufficient permit parking bays have been provided for.

4.7 There are 26 objections pertaining to Parkway C. Below is a summary of 
grounds for objection.

a) The loss of free parking will affect the parking provision within the town 
and generate a worse level of traffic in the surrounding streets.

b) I object to the loss of the two parking blocks outside St Francis Church 
to resident parking.

c) I have not witnessed any cases of cars parked on verges or footways in 
Parkway. The traffic wardens are more than capable of tackling any 
occurrence of this nature should it occur.

d) Each car space should be individually marked and the restrictions on 
the other side of the road should stay the same.

e) If any of us receive deliveries or have work done on our properties – 
where are the vans going to park? 

f) If Parkway residents are not going to be allowed to park on their hard 
standings, they should be re-zoned A4 and be allowed to park on the 
southbound side of Parkway.

g) We cannot see there is sufficient parking spaces for all the residents of 
the combined scheme, as well as visitors, tradespeople.

h) My visitors will be unable to park on my driveway if the wheels go on to 
the pavement.

i) Allowing residents from Parkway to park in Parkway Close would 
diminish parking spaces for the Parkway Close residents.

j) Removing the crossovers is unnecessary and will add to parking 
pressures.

k) I am registered disabled and would not be able to park far from my 
house.

l) The logical outcome is that A04 permit holders will want to park in the 
current A03 zone.

m) Our carers will have to seek a parking space outside Parkway Close.

Page 12



9

n) The hours are too restrictive. A reduction is required

o) The voice of the residents is not being listened to and we are 
disadvantaged.

p) There will not be enough spaces based on the level of car ownership

q) We are a cul-de-sac and therefore need to be kept unique.

r) The proposal to provide a single advisory disable bay is inadequate.

s) Parking on the crossovers has gone on for decades.

t) We have been paying for a permit to park on our driveway based on a 
previous map.

u) Residents were misled as to what the verge protection policy would 
encompass.

4.8 The reasons for moving forward with the proposals as detailed in Appendix B 
are as follows:

4.8.1 Responses to 4.7

a) The loss of free short term parking should not have an effect on parking           
provision within the town as there is ample capacity in the car parks.

b) There is parking within the church curtilage and existing shared use             
parking bays remain in Parkway north of the junction with Church Road.

c) Civil Enforcement Officers are unable to deal with verge or footway 
parking under current byelaws. The proposed new legislation will allow 
them to do so.

d) It is proposed to mark out the parking bays as suggested to encourage 
more considerate parking.

e) Loading and unloading are a specific exemption to this legislation. 
Visitor Vouchers can be purchased for tradesmen.

f) The balance of visitor and resident parking on Parkway southbound 
would not allow for additional capacity.

g) Additional resident only bays have been provided in Parkway 
northbound. It is a reasonable expectation that not all residents will be 
at home for the duration of the scheme operating hours.

h) A previous query was raised as to what degree of vehicle overhang 
onto a footway constitutes an obstruction. Enforcement officers have 
stated that if any vehicle road wheels are on the footway they would 
deem this to be an offence due to the degree of overhang.

i) The Council maintains the view that residents would wish to park as 
close as possible to their own properties.

Page 13



10

j) The Council does not have the authority to permit parking on land 
owned by Hertfordshire County Council. Consultation with Hertfordshire 
County Council confirmed that they are not agreeable to parking on 
their land.

k) An advisory disabled bay has been provided, where none was 
previously.

l) There is no evidence to suggest that this would be the case as 
additional resident only parking has been provided for in Parkway 
northbound.

m) Carers can obtain a doctors/health visitors permit under the present 
scheme.

n) The proposed operating hours of Monday to Saturday 8am-6pm reflect 
present restrictions in nearby roads. As with all new traffic regulation 
orders, a monitoring review will take place 6 months post 
implementation whereby any modifications may then be considered.

o) The duration of this particular parking consultation illustrates the fact 
that residents are being listened to.

p) The council is not obligated to provide parking spaces based upon the 
level of car ownership.

q) The Council acknowledges the unique character of Parkway Close. 
Restricting parking to the proscribed area will preserve that character by 
preventing the spread of parking to undesirable locations.

r) Should the provision of a single advisory disabled bay prove to be 
insufficient, this may be addressed as part of the monitoring review.

s) Hertfordshire County Council are reiterating their policy that vehicle 
crossovers should not be parked upon.

t) The permit parking area has been redefined to exclude the grassed 
areas and other areas where it has been deemed not permissible to 
park.

u) The initial consultation letter stated that the verge protection order 
would extend from hedgerow to hedgerow. There were several follow 
up letters to clarify this position, meaning the order would extend as far 
as the property boundary.

5 Legal Implication(s)

5.1 TROs are created under the Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984. Consultations 
follow a statutory legal process as set out in The Local Authorities' Traffic Orders 
(Procedure) (England and Wales) Regulations 1996. No other legal implications 
are inherent in relation in to the proposals in this report.

6 Financial Implication(s)

Page 14



11

6.1 The cost of TRO works recommended in this report will be funded through existing 
Parking Services revenue and capital budgets.

6.2 It is standard procedure to monitor new parking restrictions for the first 6 months 
after they are implemented. During this period all reports of safety issues or parking 
displacement will be recorded. If any significant safety issues are discovered 
during the monitoring period, Parking Services will investigate and carry out the 
appropriate remedial action.

7 Risk Management Implications

7.1 Changing the parking conditions in the above mentioned roads could generate 
negative publicity. Some parking may be displaced into nearby roads. 

7.2 It is standard procedure to monitor new parking restrictions for the first 6 months 
after they are implemented. During this period all reports of safety issues or parking 
displacement will be recorded. If any significant safety issues are discovered 
during the monitoring period, Parking Services where possible will investigate and 
carryout the appropriate remedial action.

8 Security & Terrorism Implications

8.1 There are no security & terrorism implications inherent in relation to the proposals 
in this report.

9 Procurement Implications

9.1 There are no procurement implications in relation to the proposals in this report.

10 Climate Change Implication(s)

10.1 There are no climate change implications in relation to the proposals in this report.

11  Link to Corporate Priorities

11.1 This report is linked to the Council’s Corporate Priority Protect and Enhance the 
Environment, and specifically to the achievement to Deliver Effective Parking 
Services

 Protect and enhance the environment and deliver effective parking 
services;

 Engage with our communities and provide value for money

12 Equality and Diversity

12.1 I confirm that an Equality Impact Assessment (EqIA) has been carried out. 

12.2 The EqIA found that there is potential for negative impacts on Age, Pregnancy and 
Disability. The double yellow lines will prevent parking at junctions which may force 
some motorists to park further away from their destination. Parking Services 
believe that the benefits gained from junction protection outweigh any dis-benefits. 

12.3 Disabled drivers with a valid blue badge are allowed to park on yellow lines for up 
to 3 hrs. There is also an inbuilt exemption to the Verge Protection Order which 
allows for the unloading and loading of goods and passengers.

Page 15



12

12.4 During the monitoring period (6.2) should any unintended impacts occur, Parking 
Services, where possible investigate and carryout the appropriate remedial action.

Name of author Jack Carson 01707 357529
Title Parking Technician
Date 27th June 2018

Background papers to be listed (if applicable)  

Page 16



Appendix A

Page 17



Page 18



Page 19



Page 20



Page 21



Page 22



Page 23



Page 24



Page 25



Page 26



Page 27



Page 28



Page 29



Page 30



Page 31



Page 32



Page 33



Page 34



Page 35



Page 36



Page 37



Page 38



Page 39



Page 40



Page 41



Page 42



Page 43



Page 44



Page 45



Page 46



Page 47



Page 48



Page 49



Page 50



Page 51



Page 52



Page 53



Page 54



Page 55



Page 56



Page 57



Page 58



Page 59



Page 60



Page 61



Page 62



Page 63



Page 64



Page 65



Page 66



Page 67



Page 68



Page 69



Page 70



Page 71



Page 72



Page 73



Page 74



Page 75



Page 76



Page 77



Page 78



Page 79



Page 80



Page 81



Page 82



Page 83



Page 84



Page 85



This page is intentionally left blank



WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL 

THE BOROUGH OF WELWYN HATFIELD (VARIOUS ROADS, WELWYN GARDEN CITY) 
(RESTRICTION OF WAITING AND PERMIT PARKING ZONES) ORDER 2017 

THE BOROUGH OF WELWYN HATFIELD (VARIOUS ROADS, HANDSIDE, WELWYN 
GARDEN CITY) (PROHIBITION OF STOPPING AND WAITING ON VERGE OR 

FOOTWAY) ORDER 2017 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council (pursuant to 
arrangement made with Hertfordshire County Council) in order to improve road safety 
proposes to make the above Orders under the Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984 to introduce 
restrictions in various roads, Welwyn Garden City as specified in the Schedule(s) to this 
Notice. 

Full details of the proposals are contained in the draft Orders, the plans and the statements 
of reasons which may be inspected during normal office hours at the offices of Welwyn 
Hatfield Borough Council, The Campus,Welwyn Garden City or viewed at 
www.welhat.gov.uk from 20th December 2017 

General enquiries relating to the proposals should be referred to Mr Jack Carson, Parking 
Services, Council Offices, Welwyn Garden City, AL8 6AE (01707 357000); email contact-
parking@welhat.gov.uk 

Objections to the proposals should be made in writing to Ka Ng, Council Offices, The 
Campus, Welwyn Garden City, Herts, AL8 6AE by 31st January 2018, stating the grounds on 
which they are made.  

SCHEDULE 1: No waiting at any time - those sections of roads listed below as set out 
in the Order and accompanying plans  

Parts of Parkway, Fordwich Road, Honeycroft, Fearnley Road, Parkway Close and Longcroft 
Green 

SCHEDULE 2: No waiting, Monday to Saturday, 8am to 6pm, those sections of roads 
listed below as set out in the Order and accompanying plans 

Parts of Parkway and Longcroft Green. 

SCHEDULE 3: No waiting, Monday to Saturday, 9am to 11am. Those sections of roads 
listed below as set out in the Order and accompanying plans 

Parts of Parkway  

SCHEDULE 4: Permit Parking Places, Zone A 03, Monday to Saturday, 8am to 6pm, 
those sections of roads listed below as set out in the Order and accompanying plans 

Parts of Parkway Close and Parkway 

SCHEDULE 5: Permit Parking Places, Zone A 10, Monday to Saturday, 9am to 5pm, 
those sections of roads listed below as set out in the Order and accompanying plans 

Appendix B

Page 87



Parts of Parkway 

SCHEDULE 6: Permit Parking Places, Zone A 11, Monday to Saturday, 9am to 5pm, 
those sections of roads listed below as set out in the Order and accompanying plans 

Parts of Parkway 

SCHEDULE 7: Parking Zone 

Parking Zone Name PZ Code Eligible addresses 

Parkway A 03 Even Nos 50, 52, 54, 56, 58, 60, 62, 64, 66, 68, 70 72, 
74, 76, 78, 80, 82, 84, 86, 88, 90, 92, 94, 96, 98, 100, 
102 and 104. 

Parkway Close A 03 Nos 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, 7, 8, 9, 10, 11 and 12 

Parking Zone Name PZ Code Eligible addresses 

Parkway A 10 Odd Nos 101, 103, 105, 107, 109, 111, 113, 115, 133, 
135, 137, 139, 141, 143, 145, 147, 149, 151, and 153. 
Even Nos 112, 114, 116, 118, 120, 122, 124, 126, 128, 
130, 132, 134, 136, 138, 140, 142, 144, 146, 148, and 
150 

Honeycroft A 10 Nos 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, 7, and 8 

Parking Zone Name PZ Code Eligible addresses 

Parkway A 11 Nos 169, 173, 175, 181, 183, 185, 187 and 189 

Stanborough Road A 11 No 22 

SCHEDULE 8: Allocation of Parking Permits and Parking Vouchers 

Permit Type Limit 

Resident Permit No limit 

Resident Permit for 
motorcycle 

No limit 

Business Permit 1 permit with a maximum of 2 vehicle registration 
numbers 

Visitor Voucher Minimum purchase of 20 Daily Vouchers 
Maximum purchase 240 days per year. 

Doctors/Health Visitor Permit Allocated at Council’s discretion 

Special Permit Allocated at Council’s discretion 

SCHEDULE 9: Charges for Parking Permits and Parking Vouchers* 

Application Type Charges 

Resident Permit for disabled driver First permit Free 

Resident Permit for motorcycle £10 per annum 

Resident Permit for first car £25 per annum 

Resident Permit for second car £40 per annum 

Resident permit for third or subsequent cars £60 per annum 

Business permit £225 per annum 

Visitor Voucher 50p per day or 25p per day to residents 
receiving state pension. 

Doctors/Health Visitor Permit £20 per annum 

Special Permit Charged at council’s discretion 

Administration Type Charges 

Refund Parking Permit and Vouchers £5 Paper permits and vouchers only 

Page 88



Duplicate/replacement Parking Permit £5 

Duplicate/replacement Parking Voucher £5 whole books of paper vouchers only 

*The charges may be amended by the Local Authority giving notice in accordance with
section 46A of the Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984. 

SCHEDULE 10: Refunds 

Permit Type Refund 

Resident permit for motorcycle Pro rata to the nearest month on amounts above £5 

Resident permit for first car Pro rata to the nearest month on amounts above £5 

Resident permit for second car Pro rata to the nearest month on amounts above £5 

Resident permit for third or 
subsequent cars 

Pro rata to the nearest month on amounts above £5 

Business permit Pro rata to the nearest month on amounts above £5 

Visitor Voucher Cost of whole books only 

Doctors/Health Visitor Permit Pro rata to the nearest month on amounts above £5 

Special Permit Pro rata to the nearest month on amounts above £5 

SCHEDULE 11: No Stopping or Waiting at any time on any verge, vehicle crossover or 
footway 

In parts of Parkway, Honeycroft, Parkway Gardens, Longcroft Green, The Cloisters, Church 
Road, Parkway Close and Russellcroft Road, Welwyn Garden City. 

Ka Ng, Executive Director, Resources, Environment and Cultural Services, 
Council Offices, The Campus, Welwyn Garden City, Herts AL8 6AE 
15th December 2017. 

Page 89



WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL 

STATEMENT OF REASONS FOR PROPOSING 

THE BOROUGH OF WELWYN HATFIELD (VARIOUS ROADS, HANDSIDE, WELWYN 
GARDEN CITY) (PROHIBITION OF STOPPING AND WAITING ON VERGE OR 

FOOTWAY) ORDER 2017 

Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council is proposing to introduce restrictions in parts of Parkway, 
Honeycroft, Parkway Gardens, Longcroft Green, The Cloisters, Church Road, Parkway 
Close and Russellcroft Road, Welwyn Garden City consisting of a prohibition of stopping and 
waiting on any verge, vehicle crossover and footway.  

Due to problems associated with unnecessary obstruction, blocked sightlines and damage 
being caused by vehicle parking on verges, vehicle crossovers and footways in the 
Handside conservation area; consultation has taken place with the residents in the above 
named roads. The results of the consultation showed that a clear majority were in favour of 
the proposed restriction.  

Existing bye laws in force prohibit parking on grass verges, however current legislation does 
not allow their enforcement by parking attendants. 

Having considered the duty imposed by Section 122 Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984, it 
appears to Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council that it is necessary and expedient to make 
Orders for the following reasons:- 

 For the avoidance of danger to persons or other traffic using the road and
preventing the likelihood of any such danger arising.

 For preventing the use of the road by vehicular traffic in a manner which, is
unsuitable having regard to the existing character of the road or adjoining
property

The proposed new restrictions are as follows;  

In parts of Parkway, Honeycroft, Parkway Gardens, Longcroft Green, The Cloisters, Church 
Road, Parkway Close and Russellcroft Road, Welwyn Garden City 

1. No stopping or waiting at any time on any verge, vehicle crossover or footway

Consultation has been carried out with local residents, Hertfordshire County Council, 
Hertfordshire Constabulary, Fire and Ambulance Services and local Councillors representing 
the area.  

Ka Ng, Executive Director, Resources, Environment and Cultural Services 
Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council  
Council Offices, The Campus, Welwyn Garden City, Herts AL8 6AE  
15th December 2017 

Page 90



WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL 
STATEMENT OF REASONS FOR PROPOSING 

 
THE BOROUGH OF WELWYN HATFIELD (VARIOUS ROADS, WELWYN GARDEN CITY) 

(RESTRICTION OF WAITING AND PERMIT PARKING ZONES) ORDER 2017 
 
Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council is proposing to introduce resident permit parking zones and waiting 
restrictions in Parkway and surrounding roads, Welwyn Garden City.  
 
The residents in the above roads were consulted in Spring/Summer 2017 on proposed restrictions to 
prevent parking on junctions and congestion. Residents expressed concerns about local shopper 
parking, lack of available parking and obstruction to residents’ properties; extensive consultation was 
carried out with residents residing in the above roads. 
 
Having considered the duty imposed by Section 122 Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984, Welwyn 
Hatfield Borough Council consider that it is necessary and expedient to make Orders for the 
following reasons:- 

 

 In order to provide suitable and adequate parking facilities 

 For the purposes of relieving or preventing congestion of traffic. 

 For the avoidance of danger to persons or other traffic using the road and 
preventing the likelihood of any such danger arising. 

 
The proposed new restrictions are as follows: 
 
No Waiting at any time 

 In parts of Parkway, Fordwich Road, Honeycroft, Fearnley Road, Parkway Close and 
Longcroft Green. 

 
No waiting, Monday to Saturday, 8am to 6pm 

 In parts of Parkway and Longcroft Green 
 
No waiting, Monday to Saturday, 9am to 11am 

 In parts of Parkway 
 
Parking Permit/Voucher parking places, Zone A 03, Monday to Saturday, 8am to 6pm 

 In parts of Parkway and Parkway Close. 
 
Parking Permit/Voucher parking places, Zone A 10, Monday to Saturday, 9am to 5pm 

 In parts of Parkway. 
 
Parking Permit/Voucher parking places, Zone A 11, Monday to Saturday, 9am to 5pm 

 In parts of Parkway 
 

The proposal has been subject to consultation with local and county councillors representing the 
area and Hertfordshire County Council. The local Police, Ambulance, Fire and Rescue Services, 
Officers from Hertfordshire County Council, local residents and businesses have also been 
consulted. 
 
Ka Ng 
Executive Director, Resources, Environment and Cultural Services 
Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council 
Council Offices, The Campus, Welwyn Garden City, Herts AL8 6AE 
20th November 2017 

Page 91



Page 92



Page 93



Page 94



Page 95



Page 96



Appendix C

P
age 97



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Appendix D

P
age 99



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	7 REVIEW OF WAITING RESTRICTIONS AND INTRODUCTION OF VERGE PROTECTION ORDER IN VARIOUS ROADS, HANDSIDE WARD, WELWYN GARDEN CITY
	Appendix A - CPPP - 12.7.18
	CPPP - Appendix A - 8.3.18.pdf
	McCann - Redacted - 31.1.18.pdf
	Logan - Redacted - 31.1.18
	Chambers - Redacted - 18.1.18
	King - redacted - 23.1.18
	Redfern - Redacted - 31.1.18
	Cook - Formal objection - Redacted
	Hammond - Redacted - 4.1.18
	Poulsen - Redacted - 31.1.18
	Clark - Redacted - 23.1.18
	Carter - redacted - 19.1.18
	Goldsmith - Redacted - 23.1.18
	Newman - Redacted - 30.1.18

	Appendix A - CPPP - 12.7.18
	White - Redacted - 1.2.18
	Bearman - redacted - 15.1.18
	Cleasby - Redacted - 29.1.18
	Sargant - Redacted - 1.2.18
	Condliffe - Redacted - 31.1.18
	Buchan - redacted - 24.1.18
	Croton - Redacted
	Won Min - redacted - 29.1.18
	Hasnip - Redacted - 29.1.18
	Petterson - redacted - 29.1.18
	Ludlow - Redacted - 29.1.18
	Towler - Redacted - 31.1.18
	Lansdell - Formal objection Redacted
	Souter - Redacted - 29.1.18
	Slark - Redacted - 29.1.18
	Busse - Redacted - 19.1.18
	Press - Redacted - 29.1.18
	Grammer - Redacted - 30.1.18
	Morgan - Redacted - 29.1.18
	Barcroft - Redacted2 - 1.2.18
	Weston - redacted - 9.1.18
	Bloom2 - Redacted - 29.1.18
	Shepley - Redacted - 29.1.18
	Gismondi - Redacted - 29.1.18
	Holden - Redacted - 29.1.18


	Appendix B - CPPP - 12.7.18
	Parkway Combined NOI - 14.12.17.pdf
	Verge Protection SOR - 14.12.17
	Parkway SOR - 14.12.17
	Parkway A - Final - 14.12.17
	Parkway B - Final - 14.12.17
	Parkway C - Final - 14.12.17
	Parkway D - Final - 14.12.17
	Longcroft Green - Final - 14.12.17
	Handside Parkway VP A3P - 14.12.17

	Appendix C - Longcroft Green amended
	Appendix D




